
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CALIFORNIA 

STATE HAZARD 

MITIGATION PLAN 

Volume 2 

 

 

 

 

 

Gavin Newsom 

Governor 

Nancy Ward 

Director  

California Governor’s 

Office of Emergency Services 

 

 

2023 
References 

Updated December 15, 2023 



 

 

 

 

References 
 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-1 

REFERENCES 

NOTE: For sources cited in Appendix K, see the 2018 California State Hazard Mitigation 

Plan. 

 

ASDSO. 2023. Emergency Action Planning. Association of State Dam Safety Officials. 

Accessed July 31, 2023. https://damsafety.org/dam-owners/emergency-action-

planning. 

ATSDR. 2023. Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry. Accessed August 1, 

2023. https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/. 

Bildrici, Melike, and Seyit M. Gokmenoglu. 2020. “The impact of terrorism and FDI on 

environmental pollution: Evidence from Afghanistan, Iraq, Nigeria, Pakistan, Phillipines, 

Syria, Somalia.” Environmental Impact Assessment Review. 

BLM. 2022. The Bureau of Land Management. U.S. Bureau of Land Management. 

Accessed 2022. https://www.blm.gov/. 

Brookins, Douglas G. 1990. The Indoor Radon Problem. New York: Columbia University 

Press, 229 p. 

Brundtland Commission. 1987. Our Common Future: Report of the World Commission 

on Environment and Development. United Nations. Accessed 2022. 

https://sustainabledevelopment.un.org/content/documents/5987our-common-

future.pdf. 

CAL FIRE. 2019. Forest Health. Accessed September 29, 2022. 

https://www.readyforwildfire.org/forest-health/bark-beetle-information/bark-beetle-

faqs/. 

CAL FIRE. 2022. "Frequently Asked Qustions About: 2022 Fire Hazard Severity Zones." 

California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection. December. Accessed 2023. 

https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/media/winfmowp/2022-fhsz-faqs-dec-2022-_final.pdf. 

CAL FIRE. 2023a. "Statistics." CAL FIRE. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://www.fire.ca.gov/our-impact/statistics. 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-2 

CAL FIRE. 2023b. Fire and Resource Assessment Program. California Department of 

Forestry and Fire Protection. Accessed 2023. https://www.fire.ca.gov/what-we-do/fire-

resource-assessment-program. 

CAL FIRE. n.d. California Forest Improvement Program. California Department of 

Forestry and Fire Protection. Accessed 2023. https://www.fire.ca.gov/what-we-

do/grants/california-forest-improvement. 

Cal OES. 2022. Standardized Emergency Management Systems. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/operations/planning-preparedness-

prevention/planning-preparedness/standardized-emergency-management-system/. 

Cal OES. 2023a. 2023 California State Emergency Plan. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/operations/planning-preparedness-

prevention/planning-preparedness/2023-state-emergency-plan/. 

Cal OES. 2023b. Access & Functional Needs. Accessed April 2023. 

https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/policy-administration/access-

functional-needs/. 

Cal OES. 2023c. California Disaster Assistance Act. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/operations/recovery-

directorate/recovery-operations/public-assistance/california-disaster-assistance-act/. 

Cal OES. 2023d. Homeland Security. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/operations/homeland-security/. 

Cal-Adapt. n.d. Explore and analyze climate data from California’s Climate Change 

Assessments. Accessed 2023. https://cal-adapt.org/. 

California Department of Conservation. n.d. Indoor Radon. Accessed 2023. 

https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/minerals/mineral-hazards/radon#sr247. 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife. 2019. California Oil Spill Response Cost 

Study. Prepared for the California Department of Fish and Wildlife by Catalyst 

Environmental Solutions, Environmental Research Consulting, and Greene Economics. 

November 2019. 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife. 2022. Science: Wildfire Impacts. Accessed 

July 10, 2022. https://wildlife.ca.gov/Science-Institute/Wildfire-Impacts. 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-3 

California Department of Industrial Relations. 2022. Division of Occupational Safety 

and Health website: http://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/Asbestos.html (website accessed 

July 2022). 

California Department of Toxic Substances Control. 2022. 

https://dtsc.ca.gov/assessing-risk/ (website accessed July 2022). 

California Department of Toxic Substances Control. 2022. https://dtsc.ca.gov/wp-

content/uploads/sites/31/2018/09/SMBRP_POL_Guidance_Schools_NOA.pdf (website 

accessed July 2022). 

California Department of Toxic Substances Control. 2022. 

https://dtsc.ca.gov/abandoned-mine-lands/ (website accessed July 2022). 

California Department of Toxic Substances Control. 2022. https://dtsc.ca.gov/wp-

content/uploads/sites/31/2016/01/SMBRP_AML_Guidance.pdf (website accessed July 

2022). 

California Department of Toxic Substances Control. 2022. 

https://dtsc.ca.gov/abandoned-mine-lands/#Resources (website accessed July 

2022). 

California Office of Administrative Law (OAL). 2015. California Code of Regulations: 

Title 22, Division 4.5, Chapter 11, Article 3, Section 66261.24. 

California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment. 2019. Precipitation. 

Accessed October 18, 2022. https://oehha.ca.gov/epic/changes-

climate/precipitation. 

California Office of Traffic Safety. 2021. “2021 Annual Report.” National Highway Traffic 

Safety Administration. Accessed September 2, 2022. 

https://www.nhtsa.gov/sites/nhtsa.gov/files/2022-05/CA_FY2021_AR.pdf. 

California Regional Water Quality Control Board. 2022. 

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/site_cleanup_program/ 

(website accessed July 2022). 

Cap-and-Trade. 2022. California Climate Investments Funded Programs. August. 

Accessed January 2023. https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-work/programs/california-

climate-investments/california-climate-investments-funded-

programs#footnote3_jo1fr2f. 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/Asbestos.html
https://dtsc.ca.gov/assessing-risk/
https://dtsc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2018/09/SMBRP_POL_Guidance_Schools_NOA.pdf
https://dtsc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2018/09/SMBRP_POL_Guidance_Schools_NOA.pdf
https://dtsc.ca.gov/abandoned-mine-lands/
https://dtsc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2016/01/SMBRP_AML_Guidance.pdf
https://dtsc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2016/01/SMBRP_AML_Guidance.pdf
https://dtsc.ca.gov/abandoned-mine-lands/#Resources
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/site_cleanup_program/


 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-4 

CARB. 2013. California Almanac of Emissions and Air Quality - 2013 Edition. Accessed 

July 31, 2023. https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-work/programs/resource-center/technical-

assistance/air-quality-and-emissions-data/almanac. 

CARB. 2022a. Naturally-Occurring Asbestos. California Air Resources Board. 

https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-work/programs/naturally-occurring-asbestos (website 

accessed May 2022). 

CARB. 2022b. Wildfire Smoke & Health. California Air Resources Board. Accessed July 

10, 2022. https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/wildfire-smoke-

health#:~:text=Health%20problems%20related%20to%20wildfire,asthma%2C%20and%2

0even%20premature%20death. 

CARB. 2023. Health & Air Pollution. Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/health-air-pollution. 

Carpenter, Michael, and James W Borchers. 2014. Land Subsidence from 

Groundwater Use in California. April 5. Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://cawaterlibrary.net/document/land-subsidence-from-groundwater-use-in-

california/. 

CDC. 2020. Disability and Health Overview. September 16. 

https://www.cdc.gov/ncbddd/disabilityandhealth/disability.html. 

CDC. 2020a. Caring for Children in a Disaster. Centers for Disease Control and 

Prevention. September 1. Accessed April 2023. 

https://www.cdc.gov/childrenindisasters/index.html. 

CDC. 2020b. What is a disability? September 16. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://www.cdc.gov/ncbddd/disabilityandhealth/disability.html. 

CDC. 2021. Culture and Language. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. 

December 9. https://www.cdc.gov/healthliteracy/culture.html. 

CDC. 2022a. At A Glance: CDC/ATSDR Social Vulnerability Index. Centers for Disease 

Control and Prevention. October 26. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/placeandhealth/svi/at-a-

glance_svi.html#:~:text=Socially%20Vulnerable%20Populations%20include%20those,the

%20Census%20collects%20statistical%20data. 

https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-work/programs/naturally-occurring-asbestos


 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-5 

CDC. 2022b. Culture and Language. December 27. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://www.cdc.gov/healthliteracy/culture.html. 

CDC. n.d. SVI at a Glance. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Accessed 

2022. https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/placeandhealth/svi/at-a-

glance_svi.html#:~:text=Socially%20Vulnerable%20Populations%20include%20those,the

%20Census%20collects%20statistical%20data. 

CDPH. 2022a. Indoor Radon Program: Radon. California Department of Public Health. 

Accessed April 2022 at 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CEH/DRSEM/Pages/EMB/Radon/Radon.aspx 

CDPH. 2022b. Indoor Radon Program: Radon Testing. California Department of Public 

Health. Accessed April 2022 at 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CEH/DRSEM/Pages/EMB/Radon/Radon-

Testing.aspx 

CDPH. 2022c. Indoor Radon Program: Radon Testing Results. California Department of 

Public Health. Accessed April 2022 at 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CEH/DRSEM/Pages/EMB/Radon/Radon-Test-

Results.aspx 

CDPH. 2022d. Indoor Radon Program: Radon Service Providers. California Department 

of Public Health. Accessed April 2022 at 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CEH/DRSEM/Pages/EMB/Radon/Certified-Radon-

Services-Providers.aspx 

CDPH. 2022e. Indoor Radon Program: Fixng a Radon Problem. California Department 

of Public Health. Accessed April 2022 at 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CEH/DRSEM/Pages/EMB/Radon/Radon-Fix.aspx 

CDPH. 2023. Westnile.ca.gov. California Department of Public Health. Accessed July 

31, 2023. https://westnile.ca.gov/. 

Center for Science Education. 2022. The Greenhouse Effect. University Corporation for 

Atmospheric Administration. Accessed 2022. https://scied.ucar.edu/learning-

zone/how-climate-works/greenhouse-effect. 

Center on Budget and Policy Priorities. 2022. Tracking the COVID-19 Economy’s Effects 

on Food, Housing, and Employment Hardships. February 22. Accessed September 13, 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CEH/DRSEM/Pages/EMB/Radon/Radon.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CEH/DRSEM/Pages/EMB/Radon/Radon-Testing.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CEH/DRSEM/Pages/EMB/Radon/Radon-Testing.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CEH/DRSEM/Pages/EMB/Radon/Radon-Test-Results.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CEH/DRSEM/Pages/EMB/Radon/Radon-Test-Results.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CEH/DRSEM/Pages/EMB/Radon/Certified-Radon-Services-Providers.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CEH/DRSEM/Pages/EMB/Radon/Certified-Radon-Services-Providers.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CEH/DRSEM/Pages/EMB/Radon/Radon-Fix.aspx


 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-6 

2022. https://www.cbpp.org/research/poverty-and-inequality/tracking-the-covid-19-

economys-effects-on-food-housing-and. 

CGS. 2009. Radon Potential Zone Map for the Lake Tahoe Area, California. California 

Geological Survey. April. Accessed 2023. 

https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/Documents/Publications/Special-

Reports/SR_211-Radon-Map.pdf. 

CGS. 2015. Landslide Inventory and Deep-Seated Landslide Susceptibility. California 

Geological Survey. Accessed July 31, 2023. https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/lsi/. 

CGS. 2022. Naturally-Occurring Asbestos in California. California Geological Survey. 

Website accessed April 2022. https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/minerals/mineral-

hazards/asbestos 

CGS. 2022a. Mercury in the Environment. California Geological Survey. Website 

accessed April 2022. https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/minerals/mineral-

hazards/mercury 

CGS. 2022b. Recent Earthquakes. California Geological Survey. Website accessed July 

2022. https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/Pages/Index.aspx 

CGS. 2022c. Indoor Radon. California Geological Survey. Website accessed April 2022. 

https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/minerals/mineral-hazards/radon 

CISA. 2020. CISA National Cyber Incident Scoring System. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.cisa.gov/uscert/CISA-National-Cyber-Incident-Scoring-System. 

CISA. 2021. Top Routinely Exploited Vulnerabilities. August 20. Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://www.cisa.gov/news-events/cybersecurity-advisories/aa21-209a. 

CISA. 2023. Electromagnetic Pulse and Geomagnetic Disturbance. Accessed August 

1, 2023. https://www.cisa.gov/resources-tools/programs/electromagnetic-pulse-and-

geomagnetic-disturbance. 

Columbia Mailman School of Public Health. 2021. Epidemic, Endemic, Pandemic: 

What are the Differences? February 19. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.publichealth.columbia.edu/public-health-now/news/epidemic-endemic-

pandemic-what-are-differences. 

https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/minerals/mineral-hazards/asbestos
https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/minerals/mineral-hazards/asbestos
https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/minerals/mineral-hazards/mercury
https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/minerals/mineral-hazards/mercury
https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/Pages/Index.aspx
https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/minerals/mineral-hazards/radon


 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-7 

Crenshaw, Kimberle. 1989. “Demarginalizing the Intersection of Race and Sex: A Black 

Feminist Critique of Antidiscrimination Doctrine, Feminist Theory and Antiracist Politics.” 

University of Chicago. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://chicagounbound.uchicago.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1052&context=u

clf. 

CRMP. n.d. Earthquake Brace + Bolt; Helping California Homeowners Protect Their 

Home From Earthquake Damage. California Residential Mitigation Program. Accessed 

2023. https://www.earthquakebracebolt.com/. 

CRSVIZ. 2022. State Profiles. October. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.crsviz.com/crsviz/state-profiles/. 

CVFPB. n.d. Central Valley Flood Protection Plan. State of California Central Valley 

Flood Protection Board. Accessed 2023. https://cvfpb.ca.gov/cvfpp/. 

Deliso, Meredith. 2022. Why California has blackouts: A look at the power grid. 

September 9. Accessed August 1, 2023. https://abcnews.go.com/US/california-

blackouts-power-grid/story?id=89460998. 

DGS. n.d. CALGreen. California Department of General Services. Accessed 2023. 

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/BSC/CALGreen. 

DOJ. 2022. The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). U.S. Department of Justice Civil 

Rights Division. Accessed 2022. https://www.ada.gov/. 

DOL. 1995. Code of Federal Regulations, Title 29--Labor, parts 1900-1910. U.S. 

Department of Labor. 

DOL. 2022. Legal Highlight: The Civil Rights Act of 1964. U.S. Department of Labor. 

Accessed 2022. https://www.dol.gov/agencies/oasam/civil-rights-center/statutes/civil-

rights-act-of-1964. 

Dunbar, Imani. 2021. What We Mean by Equitable Outcomes for the Global 

Workforce. March 3. Accessed 2022. https://blog.linkedin.com/2021/march/what-we-

mean-by-equitable-outcomes-for-the-global-workforce. 

DWR. 2020. The National Flood Insurance Program in California: Quick Guide. California 

Department of Water Resources. https://water.ca.gov/-/media/DWR-Website/Web-

Pages/Programs/Flood-Management/Community-Resources/National-Flood-

Insurance-Program/Files/CA-NFIP-Quick-Guide-ay11.pdf. 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-8 

DWR. 2022a. Drought. California Department of Water Resources. Accessed 2022. 

https://water.ca.gov/drought. 

DWR. 2022b. Community Rating System. California Department of Water Resources. 

Accessed 2022. https://water.ca.gov/Programs/Flood-Management/National-Flood-

Insurance-Program/Community-Rating-System. 

DWR. 2023. Regional Flood Management Planning. California Department of Water 

Resources. Accessed 2023. https://water.ca.gov/Programs/Flood-Management/Flood-

Planning-and-Studies/Regional-Flood-Management-Planning. 

Environmental Finance Center. 2008. What is Green Infrastructure? Syracuse University. 

November 13. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.esf.edu/outreach/gi/documents/Environmental_Finance_Center_Brochur

e.pdf. 

Environmental Pollution Centers. 2023. Oil Spill Pollution. Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://www.environmentalpollutioncenters.org/oil-spill/. 

EPA. 2023. Introduction to Indoor Air Quality. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 

May 16. Accessed August 1, 2023. https://www.epa.gov/indoor-air-quality-

iaq/introduction-indoor-air-

quality#:~:text=If%20too%20little%20outdoor%20air%20enters%20indoors%2C%20polluta

nts,and%20out%20may%20have%20higher%20indoor%20pollutant%20levels. 

EPA. 2016. A Citizen’s Guide to Radon: The guide to protecting yourself and your family 

from radon, U.S. EPA 402-K-12-002/2016, 16 p. Available at 

https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2016-

12/documents/2016_a_citizens_guide_to_radon.pdf (website accessed July 2022). 

EPA. 2022. Ecosystem Services Research. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 

September 14. Accessed 2022. https://www.epa.gov/eco-research/ecosystem-

services-research. 

EPA. 2022a. Radon website. Accessed July 2022: https://www.epa.gov/radon 

ESRI. 2022. What is GIS? Accessed 2022. https://www.esri.com/en-us/what-is-

gis/overview. 

https://www.epa.gov/sites/default/files/2016-12/documents/2016_a_citizens_guide_to_radon.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/radon


 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-9 

European Environment Agency. 2022. What is the difference between adaptation and 

mitigation? Accessed 2022. https://www.eea.europa.eu/help/faq/what-is-the-

difference-between. 

Federal Register. 2021. Executive Order 13985. January 20. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2021/01/25/2021-01753/advancing-

racial-equity-and-support-for-underserved-communities-through-the-federal-

government. 

FEMA. 2000. Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000. Public Law 106-390, Federal Emergency 

Management Agency. Accessed 2023. https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/2020-

11/fema_disaster-mitigation-act-of-2000_10-30-2000.pdf. 

FEMA. 2004. Building Strong Emergency Preparedness Programs. June. Accessed 2022. 

https://training.fema.gov/emiweb/downloads/demers%20-

%20emap%20em%20accreditation%20program.pdf. 

FEMA. 2004a. Federal Guidelines for Dam Safety. Federal Energy Regulatory 

Commission. April. Accessed 2022. https://www.ferc.gov/sites/default/files/2020-

04/fema-148.pdf. 

FEMA. 2012. Assessing the Consequences of Dam Failure. March. Accessed 2022. 

https://damsafety.org/sites/default/files/files/FEMA%20TM%20AssessingtheConsequenc

esofDamFailure%20March2012.pdf. 

FEMA. 2020. Community Lifelines. July 27. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/practitioners/lifelines. 

FEMA. 2020a. Whole Community. October 6. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fema.gov/glossary/whole-community. 

FEMA. 2020b. Mission Areas and Core Capabilities. July 20. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/national-preparedness/mission-core-

capabilities. 

FEMA. 2020c. Freeboard. July 8. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fema.gov/glossary/freeboard. 

FEMA. 2020d. Flood Zones. July 8. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fema.gov/glossary/flood-zones. 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-10 

FEMA. 2020e. Critical Facility. July 7. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fema.gov/glossary/critical-

facility#:~:text=Typical%20critical%20facilities%20include%20hospitals,alternatives%20a

nd%20floodplain%20management%20plans. 

FEMA. 2021. Executive Order 11988 Floodplain Management. October 20. Accessed 

August 1, 2023. https://www.fema.gov/glossary/executive-order-11988-floodplain-

management. 

FEMA. 2022. Assistance for Governments and Private Non-Profits After a Disaster. 

December 2. Accessed 2022. https://www.fema.gov/assistance/public. 

FEMA. 2022a. About BRIC: Reducing Risk through Hazard Mitigation. November 1. 

Accessed 2022. https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/building-resilient-

infrastructure-communities/about. 

FEMA. 2022b. Benefit-Cost Analysis. October 12. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fema.gov/grants/tools/benefit-cost-analysis. 

FEMA. 2022c. Community Rating System. December 14. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fema.gov/floodplain-management/community-rating-

system#:~:text=The%20Community%20Rating%20System%20(CRS,Over%201%2C500%20

communities%20participate%20nationwide. 

FEMA. 2022d. Dam Safety. March 16. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/risk-management/dam-safety. 

FEMA. 2022e. Fire Management Assistance Grants. November 15. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fema.gov/assistance/public/fire-management-assistance. 

FEMA. 2022f. Flood Insurance. March 9. Accessed 2022. https://www.fema.gov/flood-

insurance. 

FEMA. 2022g. Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) Grant. September 29. 

https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/floods. 

FEMA. 2022h. Hazard Mitigation Assistance Grants. December 20. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation. 

FEMA. 2022i. Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP). November 21. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/hazard-mitigation. 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-11 

FEMA. 2022j. Hazus. June 10. Accessed 2022. https://www.fema.gov/flood-

maps/products-tools/hazus. 

FEMA. 2022k. How a Disaster Gets Declared. January 4. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fema.gov/disaster/how-declared. 

FEMA. 2022l. National Risk Index. Accessed 2022. 

https://hazards.fema.gov/nri/annualized-frequency. 

FEMA. 2022m. Programs to Support Disaster Survivors. October 28. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fema.gov/assistance/individual/disaster-survivors. 

FEMA. 2022n. Rehabilitation Of High Hazard Potential Dam (HHPD) Grant Program. 

October 18. Accessed 2022. https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/risk-

management/dam-safety/rehabilitation-high-hazard-potential-dams. 

FEMA. 2022p. National Environmental Policy Act. March 2. Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/practitioners/environmental-

historic/laws/nepa. 

FEMA. 2022q. National Risk Index. Accessed 2022. 

https://hazards.fema.gov/nri/annualized-frequency. 

FEMA. 2023. CRS Participating Communities. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://www.fema.gov/floodplain-management/community-rating-

system#participating. 

FEMA. 2023a. “Declared Disasters.” FEMA. Accessed 2023. 

https://www.fema.gov/disaster/declarations?field_dv2_declaration_date_value%5Bmi

n%5D=1992&field_dv2_declaration_date_value%5Bmax%5D=2018&field_dv2_declarati

on_type_value=All&field_dv2_incident_type_target_id_selective=49112&field_dv2_stat

e_territory_triba. 

FEMA. 2023b. Nature-Based Solutions. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/risk-management/climate-

resilience/nature-based-solutions. 

FEMA. 2023c. “State Mitigation Planning.” FEMA. April 19. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_state-mitigation-planning-

policy-guide_042022.pdf. 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-12 

FEMA. 2023d. CRS Participating Communities. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://www.fema.gov/floodplain-management/community-rating-

system#participating. 

FEMA. 2023e. Regulations and Guidance. Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

Accessed 2023. https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/risk-

management/hazard-mitigation-planning/regulations-

guidance#:~:text=The%20Disaster%20Mitigation%20Act%20of,of%20non%2Demergenc

y%20disaster%20assistance. 

FEMA. 2023f. National Incident Management System. Federal Emergency 

Management Agency. Accessed 2023. https://www.fema.gov/emergency-

managers/nims#:~:text=The%20National%20Incident%20Management%20System,to%2

0and%20recover%20from%20incidents. 

FEMA. n.d. Executive Order 11990 - Protection of Wetlands (1 of 2). Federal Emergency 

Management Agency. Accessed 2023. 

https://emilms.fema.gov/is_1016/groups/38.html#:~:text=Executive%20Order%2011990

%20requires%20minimization,possible%2C%20adverse%20impact%20on%20wetlands. 

FEMA. n.d.-a. "Information Sheet: National Disaster Recovery Framework (Second 

Edition)." Federal Emergency Management Agency. Accessed 2023. 

https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/2020-

06/information_sheet_recovery_framework.pdf. 

FEMA. n.d.-b. Social Vulnerability. Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

Accessed 2023. https://hazards.fema.gov/nri/social-

vulnerability#:~:text=Social%20vulnerability%20is%20the%20susceptibility,loss%2C%20or

%20disruption%20of%20livelihood. 

FEMA. n.d.-c. "What Is a Levee?" Accessed 2023. 

https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/2020-08/fema_what-is-a-levee_fact-

sheet_0512.pdf. 

FEMA. n.d.-d. Community Status Book. Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

Accessed 2023. https://www.fema.gov/flood-insurance/work-with-nfip/community-

status-book. 

FERC. 2022. Owners Dam Safety Program (ODSP). June 28. Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://www.ferc.gov/dam-safety-and-inspections/owners-dam-safety-program-odsp. 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-13 

FHWA. 2023. Emergency Relief for Federally Owned Roads (ERFO). Federal Highway 

Administration. July 31. Accessed August 1, 2023. https://highways.dot.gov/federal-

lands/programs/erfo. 

Fire Protection Research Foundation. 2022. Environmental Impact of Fires in the Built 

Environment: Emission Factors. April. Accessed August 10, 2022. 

https://www.nfpa.org//-/media/Files/News-and-Research/Fire-statistics-and-

reports/US-Fire-Problem/RFEmission-Factors.pdf. 

Forests and Rangelands. n.d. Previous Wildland Fire Management Initiatives. U.S. 

Department of Agriculture, U.S. Department of the Interior. Accessed 2023. 

https://www.forestsandrangelands.gov/resources/overview/#:~:text=The%20National%

20Fire%20Plan%20(NFP,firefighting%20capacity%20for%20the%20future. 

Gordon. 2015. “Assembly Bill No. 1482.” California Legislative Information. October 8. 

Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201520160AB1482. 

Graham, E. 2022. “DHS Report Offers Electromagnetic Pulse Protection Measures for 

Critical Infrastructure.” Nextgov. September 7. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.nextgov.com/it-modernization/2022/09/dhs-report-offers-

electromagnetic-pulse-protection-measures-critical-infrastructure/376816/. 

Grammer, D., and Burkhart, J.F. 2004. 16-Hour Entry Measurement Course Manual, 

Western Regional Radon Training Center, University of Colorado, Colorado Springs. 

Higgins, C.T., Churchill, R.K., Clinkenbeard, J.P., Downey, C.I., and Fonseca, M.C. 2016. 

Mapping of potential mineral hazards in California-Protecting public health and safety 

and the environment, in Wessel, G.R., and Greenberg, J.K., eds., Geoscience for the 

Public Good and Global Development: Toward a Sustainable Future: Geological 

Society of America Special Paper 520, p. 251-266, doi: 10.1130/3026.2520(22). 

Holtzer, T, and D Galloway. 2005. “Impacts of land subsidence caused by withdrawal 

of underground fluids in the United States.” In Humans as Geologic Agents, by J Ehlen, 

W Haneburg and R Larson. 

Howell, Junia, and James R Elliot. 2018. As Disaster Costs Rise, So Does Inequality. 

December 4. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/full/10.1177/2378023118816795. 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-14 

Howell, Junia, and James R. Elliott. 2018. Damages Done: The Longitudinal Impacts of 

Natural Hazards on Wealth Inequality in the United States. August 14. Accessed 

November 17, 2022. https://academic.oup.com/socpro/article-

abstract/66/3/448/5074453. 

HUD. 2022. Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery Program. U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development. November 8. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/cdbg-dr. 

HUD. 2022a. Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery Program. U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/cdbg-dr. 

International Code Council. 2022. The International Building Code. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.iccsafe.org/products-and-services/i-codes/2018-i-codes/ibc. 

IPCC. 2022. Sixth Assessment Report. Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change. 

Accessed 2022. https://www.ipcc.ch/assessment-report/ar6/. 

ITOPF. 2022. Economic Effects. Accessed September 14, 2022. 

https://www.itopf.org/knowledge-resources/documents-guides/economic-effects/. 

ITOPF. 2023. Environmental Effects. Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://www.itopf.org/knowledge-resources/documents-guides/environmental-

effects/. 

Jackson, Robert B, Avner Vengosh, J. William Carey, Richard J Davies, Thomas H. 

Darrah, Francis O’Sullivan, and Gabrielle Petron. 2014. “The Environmental Costs and 

Benefits of Fracking.” Annual Reviews. August 11. Accessed September 29, 2022. 

https://www.annualreviews.org/doi/10.1146/annurev-environ-031113-144051. 

Jacobs, F. 2019. "Black feminism and radical planning: New directions for disaster 

planning research." Planning Theory, 24-39. 

Juniata County. 2001. “Juniata County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan.” 

Accessed 2022. https://juniataco.org/docs/hmp/Appendix%20C%20-%2001-

Civil%20Disorder.pdf. 

Kajiser, Anna, and Annica Kronsell. 2014. “Climate change through the lens of 

intersectionality.” Taylor & Franics Online. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://rsa.tandfonline.com/doi/pdf/10.1080/09644016.2013.835203. 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-15 

Kehoe. 2012. “Senate Bill No. 1241.” California State Portal. February 23. Accessed 

August 1, 2023. http://leginfo.ca.gov/pub/11-12/bill/sen/sb_1201-

1250/sb_1241_bill_20120223_introduced.pdf. 

Khan, Muhammad Tariq, Izaz Ali Shah, and Md Faysal Hossain. 2023. Personal 

protective equipment (PPE) disposal during COVID-19: An emerging source of 

microplastic and microfiber pollution in the environment. February 20. Accessed 

August 1, 2023. 

https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0048969722074228#:~:text=MPs%2

FMFs%20have%20recently%20been%20reported%20in%20a%20variety,plastic%20waste

%20entering%20the%20terrestrial%20and%20marine%20environments. 

Knowlton, Kim, Miriam Rotkin-ellman, Glatea King, Helene G. Margolis, Daniel Smith, 

Gina Solomon, Roger Trent, and Paul English. 2009. “The 2006 California Heat Wave: 

Impacts on Hospitalizations and Emergency Department Visits.” Environmental Health 

Perspectives 117 (1). Accessed April 2023. 

https://ehp.niehs.nih.gov/doi/10.1289/ehp.11594. 

LAO. 2022. Climate Change Impacts Across California. Legislative Analyst’s Office. 

April 5. Accessed August 1, 2023. https://lao.ca.gov/Publications/Report/4575. 

Melike Bildirici, Seyit M. Gokmenoglu. 2020. “The impact of terrorism and FDI on 

environmental pollution: Evidence from Afghanistan, Iraq, Nigeria, Pakistan, Philippines, 

Syria, Somalia.” Environmental Impact Assessment Review. 

doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.eiar.2019.106340. 

Mendez, Michael, Genevieve Flores-Haro, and Lucas Zucker. 2020. “The (in)visible 

victims of disaster: Understanding the vulnerability of undocumented Latino/a and 

indigenous immigrants.” National Library of Medicine. November. Accessed July 31, 

2023. https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/32834081/. 

Michigan Tech. 2022. How Do We Measure Earthquake Magnitude? Accessed 2022. 

https://www.mtu.edu/geo/community/seismology/learn/earthquake-measure. 

Monroe County. 2017. Accessed August 2022. 

https://www.monroecounty.gov/files/oem/2017/20%20Section%205.4.10-

Civil%20Unrest%20Apr17.pdf. 

NAACP. 2018. In the Eye of the Storm: A People’s Guide to Transforming Crisis & 

Advancing Equity in the Disaster Continuum. Accessed July 31, 2023. 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-16 

https://naacp.org/resources/eye-storm-peoples-guide-transforming-crisis-advancing-

equity-disaster-continuum. 

National Academies Press. 2020. Implications of the California Wildfires for Health, 

Communities, and Preparedness: Proceedings of a Workshop. Accessed July 10, 2022. 

https://nap.nationalacademies.org/read/25622/chapter/4. 

National Archives. 2021. Code of Federal Regulations. September 8. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.archives.gov/federal-register/cfr. 

National Commission on the Environment. 1992. Choosing a sustainable future : the 

report of the National Commission on the Environment. Washington, D.C.: Island Press, 

207. Accessed 2022. 

National Collaborating Centre for Determinants of Health. n.d. Glossary of Essential 

Health Equity Terms. Accessed September 15, 2022. 

https://nccdh.ca/glossary/entry/marginalized-populations. 

National Geographic. 2022. Climate Change. Accessed 2022. 

https://education.nationalgeographic.org/resource/climate-change. 

National Severe Storms Laboratory. 2022. Severe Weather 101: Flood Types. NOAA. 

Accessed 2022. https://www.nssl.noaa.gov/education/svrwx101/floods/types/. 

National Wildfire Coordinating Group. 2006. "Glossary of Wildland Fire Terminology." 

PMS 205. Accessed 2023. 

https://www.fs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/fswdev3_009827.pdf. 

NEHRP. 2022. About Us. National Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program. Accessed 

2022. https://www.nehrp.gov/about/vision.htm. 

NFIP/CRS. 2015. CRS Handout - Mapping Repetitive Loss Areas. October. Accessed 

2022. https://crsresources.org/files/500/mapping_repetitive_loss_areas.pdf. 

NFPA. 2022. Environmental Impact of Fires in the Built Environment. National Fire 

Protection Association. April. Accessed August 1, 2023. https://www.nfpa.org/News-

and-Research/Data-research-and-tools/US-Fire-Problem/The-environmental-impact-of-

fire. 

NID. 2023. Dams of the Nation. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://nid.sec.usace.army.mil/#/. 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-17 

NIDIS. 2022. U.S. Drought Monitor (USDM). National Integrated Drought Information 

System. https://www.drought.gov/data-maps-tools/us-drought-monitor. 

NOAA SWPC. 2023. Space Weather Impacts. Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://www.swpc.noaa.gov/impacts. 

NOAA. 2015. What are atmospheric rivers? National Oceanic and Atmospheric 

Administration. December. Accessed 2022. https://www.noaa.gov/stories/what-are-

atmospheric-rivers. 

NOAA. 2020. Oil Spills. August 1. Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://www.noaa.gov/education/resource-collections/ocean-coasts/oil-spills. 

NOAA. 2023. Climate Data Online. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/cdo-web/. 

NOAA. 2023a. Wildfire Management. June 7. Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://www.drought.gov/sectors/wildfire-

management#:~:text=During%20drought%20conditions%2C%20fuels%20for%20wildfire

%2C%20such%20as,Drought%20can%20be%20intensified%20by%20unusually%20warm

%20temperatures. 

NOAA. 2023b. Storm Events Database. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/stormevents/choosedates.jsp?statefips=6%2CCALIFORNI

A. 

OAL. 2023. California Code of Regulations (CCR). California Office of Administrative 

Law. Accessed 2023. https://oal.ca.gov/publications/ccr/. 

OPR. 2022. CEQA: The California Environmental Quality Act. California Governor’s 

Office of Planning and Research. Accessed 2022. https://opr.ca.gov/ceqa/. 

OPR. 2022a. General Plan Information. California Governor’s Office of Planning and 

Research. Accessed 2022. https://opr.ca.gov/planning/general-plan. 

OPR. 2022b. CEQA: The California Environmental Quality Act. California Governor's 

Office of Planning and Research. Accessed 2022. https://opr.ca.gov/ceqa/. 

Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development. n.d. Risks from Natural 

Hazards at Hazardous Installations (Natech). Accessed September 30, 2022. 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-18 

https://www.oecd.org/chemicalsafety/chemical-accidents/risks-from-natural-hazards-

at-hazardous-installations.htm. 

OSFM. 2022. Fire Hazard Severity Zones (FHSZ). California Office of the State Fire 

Marshal. Accessed 2022. https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/divisions/community-wildfire-

preparedness-and-mitigation/wildfire-preparedness/fire-hazard-severity-zones/. 

OSHA. 2010. “Safety and Health Awareness for Oil Spill Cleanup Workers.” OSHA. June. 

Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://www.osha.gov/sites/default/files/publications/Oil_Spill_Booklet_05-

11_v4.pdf#:~:text=Oil%20spill%20cleanup%20workers%20can%20face%20potential%20

hazards,other%20wild%20species%20native%20to%20the%20impacted%20areas. 

Ostro, Bart D., Lindsey A. Roth, Rochelle S. Green, and Rupa Basu. 2009. “Estimating the 

mortality effect of the July 2006 California heat wave.” Environmental Research 109 

(5): 614-619. 

https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0013935109000553?via%3Dih

ub. 

Pacific Institute. 2015. Impacts of California’s Ongoing Drought: Agriculture. Accessed 

July 31, 2023. https://pacinst.org/publication/impacts-of-californias-ongoing-drought-

agriculture/. 

Pacific Northwest Seismic Network. 2022. Seiche. Accessed 2022. 

https://pnsn.org/outreach/earthquakehazards/tsunami/seiche. 

Pacific Northwest Seismic Network. 2022a. Surface Rupture. Accessed 2022. 

https://pnsn.org/outreach/earthquakehazards/surface-rupture. 

Paini, Dean R, Andy W Sheppard, and David C Cook. 2016. Global threat to 

agriculture from invasive species. June 20. Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/27325781/. 

PHMSA. 2022. PHMSA Data and Statistics. June 30. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://www.phmsa.dot.gov/data-and-statistics/phmsa-data-and-statistics. 

Rosenbaum, Rene P. and Brenda Long. 2018. “Disaster preparedness training for Latino 

migrant and seasonal farm workers in communities where they work.” 

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6296080/. 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-19 

Sciencing. 2021. The Effects of Nuclear Radiation on the Environment. October 20. 

Accessed August 1, 2023. https://sciencing.com/the-effects-of-nuclear-radiation-on-

the-environment-13428111.html. 

Shang, Yunfeng, Haiwei Li, and Ren Zhang. 2021. Effects of Pandemic Outbreak on 

Economies: Evidence From Business History Context. March 12. Accessed August 1, 

2023. https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/33777885/. 

Space Weather Operations, Research, and Mitigation Working Group. 2019. NATIONAL 

SPACE WEATHER STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN. March. Accessed October 4, 2022. 

https://trumpwhitehouse.archives.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/National-Space-

Weather-Strategy-and-Action-Plan-2019.pdf. 

SPIA Index. n.d. "What is the Sperry-Plitz Ice Accumulation Index?" SPIA Index. 

https://spia-index.com/. 

State of California. 2022. California Climate Adaptation Strategy. Accessed August 

2022. https://www.climateresilience.ca.gov/. 

Storm Prediction Center. 2022. Fujita Tornado Damage Scale. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.spc.noaa.gov/faq/tornado/f-scale.html. 

The Greenlining Institute. 2019. Making Equity Real in Climate Adaptation and 

Community Resilience Policies and Programs: A Guidebook. August 17. Accessed July 

31, 2023. https://greenlining.org/publications/making-equity-real-in-climate-

adaptation-and-community-resilience-policies-and-programs-a-guidebook/. 

Tornado Project. 2018. Tornado Data. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

http://www.tornadoproject.com/. 

U.S. Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry. 2001. Toxicological Profile for 

Asbestos: Atlanta, Georgia, U.S. Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry, 

Division of Toxicology/Toxicology Information Branch, 327 p., and Appendices A-F. 

U.S. Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry. 2022. 

https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/toxprofiledocs/index.html (website accessed July 2022). 

U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. n.d. Invasive Species. Accessed 

September 29, 2022. https://www.fs.usda.gov/managing-land/invasive-species. 

https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/toxprofiledocs/index.html


 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-20 

U.S. Fire Administration. 2022. What is the WUI? June 8. Accessed July 4, 2022. 

https://www.usfa.fema.gov/wui/what-is-the-wui.html 

U.S. Fire Administration. 2022. What is the WUI? June 8. Accessed July 4, 2022. 

https://www.usfa.fema.gov/wui/what-is-the-wui. 

html#:~:text=The%20WUI%20is%20the%20zone,undeveloped%20wildland%20or%20veg

etative%20fuels. 

U.S. Government Information. 2022. Healthy Forests Restoration Act of 2003. October 

19. Accessed 2022. https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/COMPS-1123/pdf/COMPS-

1123.pdf. 

U.S. President. Executive Order 13985. 2021. “Executive Order 13985.” Advancing 

Racial Equity and Support for Underserved Communities Through the Federal 

Government. 

UC Davis. 2023. California Drought Watch. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

drought.ucdavis.edu. 

UNICEF. 2016. “Child-Centered Disaster Risk Reduction: Contributing to Resilient 

Development.” 

http://www.childreninachangingclimate.org/uploads/6/3/1/1/63116409/child-

centered_drr-_contributing_to_resilient_development.pdf. 

USA.gov. 2022. A-Z Index of U.S. Government Departments and Agencies. Accessed 

2022. https://www.usa.gov/federal-agencies/a. 

USACE. 2022. Flood Risk Management. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.usace.army.mil/Missions/Civil-Works/Flood-Risk-Management/. 

USBR. 2022. Dam Safety. U.S. Bureau of Reclamation. February 14. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.usbr.gov/damsafety/index.html. 

USDA NRCS. 2023. Emergency Watershed Protection. Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/programs-initiatives/ewp-emergency-watershed-

protection. 

USDA. 2023. Disaster Designation Information. Accessed July 31, 2023. 

https://www.fsa.usda.gov/programs-and-services/disaster-assistance-

program/disaster-designation-information/index. 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-21 

USDA. n.d. Inflation Reduction Act Funding for Rural Development. U.S. Department of 

Agriculture. Accessed 2023. https://www.rd.usda.gov/inflation-reduction-act. 

USFS. 2022. National Fire Danger Rating System. U.S. Forest Service. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fs.usda.gov/detail/cibola/landmanagement/resourcemanagement/?cid

=stelprdb5368839#. 

USFS. 2023a. Invasive Species. U.S. Forest Service. Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://www.fs.usda.gov/managing-land/invasive-species. 

USFS. 2023b. California Tree Mortality. U.S. Forest Service. Accessed August 1, 2023. 

https://www.fs.usda.gov/main/catreemortality/home. 

USFWS. 2022. Endangered Species Act. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. Accessed 2022. 

https://www.fws.gov/law/endangered-species-act. 

USGS. 2018. The 100-Year Flood. U.S. Geological Survey. June 7. Accessed December 

2022. https://www.usgs.gov/special-topics/water-science-school/science/100-year-

flood. 

USGS. 2019a. Watersheds and Drainage Basins. U.S. Geological Survey. June 8. 

Accessed 2022. https://www.usgs.gov/special-topics/water-science-

school/science/watersheds-and-drainage-basins. 

USGS. 2019b. Earthquake Hazards 201 - Technical Q&A. U.S. Geological Survey. August 

6. Accessed 2022. https://www.usgs.gov/programs/earthquake-

hazards/science/earthquake-hazards-201-technical-qa. 

USGS. 2021. National Landslide Preparedness Act. U.S. Geological Survey. February 3. 

Accessed 2022. https://www.usgs.gov/programs/landslide-hazards/science/national-

landslide-preparedness-act. 

USGS. 2022a. What are the effects of earthquakes? Accessed 2022. 

https://www.usgs.gov/programs/earthquake-hazards/what-are-effects-earthquakes. 

USGS. 2022b. What is liquefaction? Accessed 2022. https://www.usgs.gov/faqs/what-

liquefaction. 

USGS. 2022c. What is an earthquake and what causes them to happen? U.S. 

Geological Survey. Accessed 2022. https://www.usgs.gov/faqs/what-earthquake-and-

what-causes-them-happen. 



 References 

California State Hazard Mitigation Plan Reference-22 

USGS. 2022d. What is a debris flow? Accessed 2022. https://www.usgs.gov/faqs/what-

debris-

flow#:~:text=Debris%20flows%20are%20fast%2Dmoving,50%20states%20and%20U.S.%20

Territories. 

USGS. 2022e. What is the difference between a sinkhole and land subsidence? U.S. 

Geological Survey. Accessed 2022. https://www.usgs.gov/faqs/what-difference-

between-sinkhole-and-land-subsidence. 

Waikato Region Emergency Management. 2015. What damage can earthquakes do? 

Accessed August 1, 2023. https://www.waikatoregioncdemg.govt.nz/info-and-

resources/information-resourceshazards/earthquakes/what-damage-can-

earthquakes-do/. 

World Green Building Council. 2022. Air Quality in the Built Environment. Accessed 

2022. https://worldgbc.org/clean-air-buildings/impacts. 

Verisk. 2023. Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule (BCEGS®). Accessed 2023. 

https://www.isomitigation.com/bcegs/. 

YSG Solar. 2021. Top 5 Solar Farm Land Requirements. June 10. Accessed August 1, 

2023. https://www.ysgsolar.com/blog/top-5-solar-farm-land-requirements-ysg-

solar#:~:text=Generally%20speaking%2C%20solar%20developers%20will%20require%20

a%20minimum,not%20permit%20full%20coverage%20f%20the%20entire%20parcel. 

Zuskin, Eugenija, Jadranda Mustajbegovic, Jagoda Doko Jelinic, Jasna Pucarin-

Cvetkovic, and Milan Milosevic. 2007. Effects of volcanic eruptions on environment 

and health. December. Accessed September 29, 2022. 

https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/18063533/#:~:text=Further%20effects%20are%20the%

20deterioration,those%20affected%20by%20volcanic%20eruptions. 

 


	References
	References





Accessibility Report





		Filename: 

		California SHMP_Vol 2_Submittal10_2023-12-15 - JJo 1.pdf









		Report created by: 

		Jen Johnson, jen.johnson@tetratech.com



		Organization: 

		Tetra Tech, Inc.







 [Personal and organization information from the Preferences > Identity dialog.]



Summary



The checker found no problems in this document.





		Needs manual check: 0



		Passed manually: 2



		Failed manually: 0



		Skipped: 4



		Passed: 26



		Failed: 0







Detailed Report





		Document





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set



		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF



		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF



		Logical Reading Order		Passed manually		Document structure provides a logical reading order



		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified



		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar



		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents



		Color contrast		Passed manually		Document has appropriate color contrast



		Page Content





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged



		Tagged annotations		Skipped		All annotations are tagged



		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order



		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided



		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged



		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker



		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts



		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses



		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive



		Forms





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged



		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description



		Alternate Text





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text



		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read



		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content



		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation



		Other elements alternate text		Skipped		Other elements that require alternate text



		Tables





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot



		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR



		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers



		Regularity		Skipped		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column



		Summary		Skipped		Tables must have a summary



		Lists





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L



		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI



		Headings





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting










Back to Top



